Academic Senate Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, March 25, 2026
7:00 P.M. (Hard Stop Time 8:45 P.M.)
OLD MAIN ROOM, BONE STUDENT CENTER

Call to Order 
Chairperson Bonnell called the meeting to order.  

Roll Call 
Senator Nikolaou called the roll and declared quorum. 

Public Comment: All speakers must sign in with the Senate Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.
Senator Seifert: Thank you. I’m making this statement on behalf of the College of Business Department of Management. They did a poll on students in its regard to a mandatory block scheduling. Let me read this for you:
  
Several faculty members in the Management Department recently conducted a student poll to note their perceptions about block scheduling. Below are the highlights. On behalf of management and faculty, I am requesting you to take this up for discussion in the forthcoming Academic Senate meeting. 

· The sample size of 316 student responses, the main qualitative or quantitative highlights of the findings, that 89% of students have said that block scheduling would affect them negatively or would have affected them negatively for respondents who are planning to graduate before the changes come into full effect, which my understanding is spring of 27.  
· 70% were not aware that these changes of these changes before they took the poll. Main qualitative highlights of the findings. 
· Many of the students express that they have paid work and internships on Fridays. Many students reserve Fridays for paid work or internships and say Friday classes would cut work hours, jeopardize employment. That was 196 or 62% of the students. 
· There’s homework and study and catching up. They widely use Fridays to complete assignments. Study meet groups are prepared for the next week. 
· 124 students, 39.2%  Travel home, family and weekday appointments. Many leave campus to visit family commute home for weekends or schedule Doctor or DMV visits on Fridays or 54 or 17.1% of students.  
· Mental health, rest, and life administration. Students describe Fridays as vital for decompressing, sleep, self-care, laundry, cleaning, and errands. 
· 47 students or 14.9 percent. Learning and attendance preference. Monday, Wednesday, Friday, 75 minutes. Monday, Wednesday, Friday, 50 minutes. A notable group prefers two longer meetings for learning efficiency. They view Friday sessions as low energy, often skipped or canceled, 29 students, 9.2%. 
· Overall, these findings reveal serious challenges related to college affordability due to block scheduling’s impact on student employment and mental health.  Also, concerning is that 30% of students were not aware of these changes until they took the poll. They feel like it’s been well documented to the student body. No personal information was collected in the poll. The comments were organized into categories using internal co-pilot AI tool. 

Chairperson’s Remarks
Chairperson Bonnell: Good evening. First thing, welcome to new senators. We have a new faculty senator, Senator Riverstone. You represent the College of Arts and Sciences and its Social Science division. You will be joining the Rules committee. Thank you for your service on Senate, and welcome. We also have three other student senators, Senators Foster, Okeke, and Bediaku, so thank you for being, again, Senators. We have four new Senators. This is really exciting. Can we all thank them for being here? Welcome! 
Thank you to all who have donated items for the joint effort with SGA to support the School Street Food Pantry. After tonight’s Senate, we will tally up the donations by internal committee to determine which committee has given the most, and that committee will receive a special recognition at its next meeting on April 8th. I’ve just learned that we’ve already counted and the Academic Affairs Committee has donated the most so congratulations to the Academic Affairs Committee. Thank you to everyone else, also. 
A reminder, as I’m talking about April 8th, if internal committees have any items you would like considered here in Senate, they would need to become an information item at our April 8th meeting, our next meeting, with the intention of being an action item at the April 22nd meeting, which is the last Senate meeting for this group of senators. Contact me if you have any questions about that. We have just two more Senates for this current membership. Again, that’s April 8th and April 22nd. That last meeting in May is for new and continuing senators. If you have any questions about that, please let me know. 
Next, as many of you know, over the weekend, there was an off-campus shooting that injured two Illinois State University students and four others. I wish all of those individuals well and all who may have been affected by the shooting. Although this occurred off-campus, it was in an area where many from the University community live. In fact, I live about a half a mile south of that location. And as it turns out, my family contacted me, concerned about my safety, and they had learned about it through social media. I understand that ISU Emergency Alerts are sent on a case-by-case basis, and I appreciated that ISUPD recently provided a statement indicating the factors of their use in guiding their decisions on sending those emergency alerts. For those of you who didn’t see that statement, those factors include the type of incident, location, credibility, clarity of information, and timeliness. ISUPD also shared that Emergency Alerts are reserved for situations involving immediate threat to campus safety. From my perspective, our Redbird community works toward a good relationship with the Town of Normal, including the Normal Police Department. Not all campus communities can make this claim, and I don’t take that for granted. It is my hope that this can be used to review and improve communication within the larger campus community. 
Please, remember to take advantage of the support resources available at ISU. 
The last thing I wanted to mention tonight is I remain impressed with the abilities of all students. Every day I see that students are amazing. Many students showcase their talents publicly in a variety of ways. Tonight, as we speak, the men’s basketball team is competing against the Dayton Flyers in the quarterfinals of the NIT. And Friday, the women’s basketball team will be hosting Abeline Christian Wildcats at 6.30 p.m. on Doug Collins Court at CEFCU Arena in the WNIT Super 16. As you are able, I hope you will consider attending and supporting our talented students, whether at these events or at any of the many other events that are available. I’d be happy to take any questions, but if not, I’ll go ahead and hand it over to Student Body President Zagal for her remarks.
Student Body President’s Remarks
Senator Zagal: Good evening, everybody. I have a little bit longer of a statement today, and I’m speaking for myself, my association, our constituents and their parents. Recently, in Normal, we’ve seen multiple shootings occur near campus or on campus. Most recently, this past weekend, where there was an incident where six people were injured, including two students and two minors. Let’s be clear, this is not the first incident in our community like this. Students are paying close attention to these patterns. They’re reaching out with concerns. Many of us woke up to messages from RSO leaders, other students, and family members from out of town, out of state. In fact, so many people were unaware of the incident that I myself had to ask what people were talking about. Consistent messages we were hearing from all these people were that the students felt like there was a lack of direct and timely communication from the University and it felt a little insensitive. 
I want to be clear that the students are not expecting the University to solve gun violence overnight. What we’re asking is for acknowledgement, care, and communication. Right now, there’s a noticeable disparity on how the University communicates in different situations. During last year’s faculty union negotiation, the campus community received frequent, even daily, updates, but when students are victims of violence, just blocks from where they live, walk and study, there’s often silence. That’s the contrast being felt, and it’s shaping how students perceive the administration’s priorities. This is not a communication issue, but it’s an optic issue. The risk of normalizing gun violence in a student community, both on and off campus. Students should not have to walk past blood stains on sidewalks, blood stains on their cars with the only informational available coming from a Facebook post or a news article. Parents should not be calling their students in panic because the only information they have got is from social media rather than the University itself. 
Why are so many outside outlets covering this incident while the students are not hearing directly from this situation that should care the most? We have systems in place like Redbird Safety apps that are designed to keep students informed in real time yet some of these moments do not update. No updates were sent. While students technically can report incidents, it’s not their responsibility at the moment. Their priority should be getting their own personal safety. We would like to thank Vice President of Student Affairs, LJ, who was one of the only voices from the University sending it out in a message, acknowledging what happened. However, that alone is not enough. Students want more- a brief acknowledgement. We are tired of a cycle where tragedy is recognized for a week and then seems to be forgotten by the institution. 
I can assure your students still remember the fear they felt whether it was this past weekend or last year at the Bone, which is only one of the two multiple gun-related incidents within the past two years. To rebuild trust, students need to know that the University is actively working with community partners on prevention. SGA stands ready to partner with this work, we want to help bridge the gap between students and administration and ensure the communication reflects the level of care students need to feel safe and supported. Because at the end of the day, this is not about information. It’s about whether students feel their safety and their lives are a visible priority. Thank you.

Administrators’ Remarks
· President Aondover Tarhule (excused)
Chairperson Bonnell: President Tarhule and Provost Yazedjian are excused this evening. President Tarhule asked me to share his regrets for not attending tonight’s meeting. He is among a group from the University in D.C. meeting with Senator Duckworth and other representatives to advocate for the funding of a new STEM building. 
· Provost Ani Yazedjian (excused)
· Vice President for Student Affairs Levester Johnson

Senator Johnson: Thank you. Good evening, everyone. I want to start off, by addressing last week’s incident and first of all, make a statement regarding those individuals who were injured in the incidents. Personally, my thoughts, my heart and my prayers go out to those individuals, including our two students who were injured. Next, I want to thank you all, both of you, for your words and sharing your thoughts related to the incident as well. And I want to spend the bulk of our time, the time that I have, providing maybe some additional information as to what occurred during the weekend. I’ve asked Chief Woodruff as well as Eric Hodges, our Director for Emergency Management, to be here as well. I think Chief Woodruff has a statement and some information to share with you as well. I’m going to ask him to join us, but I’ll start by sharing that. Definitely the incident was a tragic one. It was a large gathering again that we have seen occurring on various weekends, especially when the weather starts getting nice as it is. That’s what the message that I sent out to our students today addressed. It’s going to take a partnership with us and the students in order to create as possible a safe environment as we can for everyone. 
We’re in a new day, a new age, where these things are popping up everywhere. College campuses, grocery stores, theaters, you name it. These incidents are occurring. I don’t wish to normalize it at all. They are all tragic and need to be addressed. But we all can’t do it alone. These large gatherings create environments by which our students can be injured and incidents can dramatically and quickly escalate. One of the things I’m asking for our students, especially for the next couple of weeks here is to avoid situations where they feel unsafe, where they feel things are escalating. Definitely, we will have a pledge to work with our student government with other entities in order to try to get this word out in a better and more appropriate fashion. It’s one thing to have administrators like myself or faculty, and other staff members try to get a message across, but it’s more impactful if it’s coming from the students themselves as well. 
We’ll be looking to partner with them this year, for the rest of this year as well as moving forward in order to address this as well. I should probably tell you as well, related to those students who were injured this past weekend I want to let you know that as relates to our protocols, we did follow through with all of our standard protocols and following up with the families and the students immediately. Our Critical Incident Response Team was notified immediately. They were in touch with the parents. They were in touch with those students at the hospital. The care and support was given and we always are committed to that. We will never falter as it relates to that. We hear about something. We are there first and foremost for our students and for those families that are impacted. That occurred, okay, that did take place over the weekend or that night. I’ve asked Chief Woodruff, again, to join us. He can provide some additional information on these type of incidents and so forth. I’m going to turn the remaining time over to him.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Thank you. Good evening. I’d like to begin tonight again by acknowledging our thoughts and concerns for not just the two students who are injured, but the numerous other students who were directly impacted by yet another act of senseless violence committed by some individuals who clearly have a reckless disregard for human life. I’m going to start by talking a little bit about why we issue emergency alerts and then I’ll provide a summary of the response and communications related to the shooting early Sunday morning. I will not be discussing the ongoing investigation as that is under the jurisdiction of the Normal Police Department. I can only share publicly available information and any updates regarding the investigation will have to come directly from them. 
First, I want to assure you that the safety of our students and all members of our campus community is my highest priority. Not only because it is my responsibility, but because I too am a parent of an ISU student and a spouse of an ISU employee. I stand by my previous statements when I say that this is a safe campus and I would not allow my own child to attend if I didn’t feel it was that way. These recent incidents are concerning precisely because they are not typical for Illinois State University, and none of us want to see them continue. Emergency alerts are issued only when there is believed to be an imminent threat requiring our community to take immediate action, similar to how our tornado siren instructs people to take shelter. Some universities issue alerts only for incidents occurring on university property. While this is true for ISU, we also consider off campus areas where students generally reside. The decision to issue an alert is made by our on-duty police supervisor who must quickly assess each situation on a case-by-case basis using the information available at that moment and answer one critical question: Is this an imminent threat requiring immediate action? 
Here’s a brief summary of the incident based on what has been shared with me to this point. The situation began actually hours before the actual shooting when a large party formed in the 700 block of Franklin, just a couple blocks south of campus. Like several other gatherings that weekend, it was likely organized through social media posts with location information shared in private chats to avoid police attention. Normal police became aware of the large gathering as it began overflowing into the street and they responded to break it up. The group then moved to an apartment complex on Willow Street, where Normal Police once again responded at the request of the apartment security. While they were still dispersing at that second location, the group unknowingly began to reconvene again at Franklin Avenue. During this time, a Normal Police Officer who was at the time at University and Beaufort Street heard what they believed were multiple gunshots coming from the south. Officers responded immediately and saw many people fleeing the area. When they reached the scene, only a handful of individuals remained and no victims were located. A short time later, two victims were found nearby and Normal rescue was called, though the confusion initially sent those responders to University and Beaufort.
Meanwhile, four other victims self-reported at Carle Broman and OSF St. Joseph Hospitals- information officers did not have until the hospitals notified them. Our on-duty supervisor and several ISU officers responded to assist NPD. Before determining whether to issue an emergency alert. My supervisor attempted to obtain as much information from the NPD supervisors as they could. Based on the information available at that time, he did not believe the situation represented an ongoing or imminent threat to the campus community that required immediate action. I want to note, though, this is the same supervisor who did issue an emergency alert several weeks earlier for a similar, though distinct incident. Every situation is unique and it can be a judgment call when there isn’t always a clearly right or wrong answer. We ask our supervisors to make the best decision they can by considering four key factors, which I appreciate you initially providing. 
The first, again, is the type of incident. How serious and immediate is the threat? Early law enforcement information indicated this was an isolated act of violence, not an active or continuing threat. The second is the location. Did the incident occur on campus or directly impact campus property? This incident occurred off campus in a residential neighborhood where students and families reside, but under normal police jurisdiction and there was no indication at that time it was moving towards campus. Credibility and clarity of information: do we have the confirmed information to share? In a fast-moving situation, especially those involving large crowds, it can take time to confirm accurate details and avoid sharing incomplete or potentially misleading information. And the last one is the timeliness. Would an alert help people take immediate safety actions? Emergency alerts are intended to help our campus take immediate life-saving action. In this case, unfortunately, the incident had already ended and there were no specific actions the campus community could have taken. 
Emergency alerts are not our only communication method. When an alert is not needed for immediate safety, ISU police may issue a crime advisory or a community update instead. This decision is consistent with how we have handled similar off-campus incidents in the past. When an incident occurs on university property, and ISU police is the lead agency, we can assess conditions more quickly and make timely emergency notification decisions without waiting or relying on outside investigative information. We fully understand the fear and concern that events like this create, especially when they occur near areas where our students live. We remain committed to keeping our students, faculty, and staff both safe and informed. We continue to review our communication processes, and we’re working closely with the Normal Police Department as their investigation moves forward. Anyone with information is strongly encouraged to please contact the Normal Police Department so we can help solve this incident. At this time, I will welcome any questions or further discussions.
Senator Meyer: Okay, so I learned about this about 2 p.m. from faculty members texting based on the WGLT article. I don’t believe there was ever a University email after the fact, is that correct?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Yes, what was issued is what’s referred to as a community update. The crime advisories are issued for incidents that occur on campus under the Cleary Act requirements. What we found was that there are complications when trying to treat crime advisories on campus and incidents that don’t occur in Cleary geography the same. We created the community update as a way of notifying the campus community. The community update is sent out via the social media channels. Eric and I both talked, we’re looking at ways we can also try to incorporate that into the Safe Redbirds app, but it does not generate a campus-wide email, and it does not generate a text message. But part of the reason we do community updates is because they are events that are happening off campus that are under another jurisdiction’s area of responsibility.
Senator Meyer: Okay. I would just pose this question to students in the room. How many of you by show of hands are pleased with how this played out? [No hands raised.]

Senator Lucey: I understand the investigation is still undergoing. Can you comment on how many of the people at that party were ISU students and how many people were not?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: I do not have that information, unfortunately.
Senator Blum: So, there’s emergency alert, crime advisory, which is campus only, right? Is that correct?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Yes, or what is referred to as within the Cleary Geography, which is slightly more than the University property.
Senator Blum: Yes, and then then there’s the crime advisory. The crime advisory seemed like for a variety of reasons, actually was the best method of communication. It seems to me that’s an issue, right? I don’t really know why, but it seems like a part of the thing is like, at least people seem to feel that that level of communication doesn’t have a wide enough reach. I don’t know if it can or there is a way to expand the reach. Maybe you just speak to that?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: I think one of the disconnects here is the purpose of an emergency alert and the means in which an emergency alert and the timeliness of an emergency alert is different from those other means. And so yes, by extension their reach. If the purpose of an emergency alert is to just inform the community, that’s different than an emergency alert where you’re sending it out for an imminent situation in which we want them to take immediate action. I think that’s where some of the disconnect is coming from. The means of the communication and the timeliness of it. I understand, again, I’ve had plenty of conversations and that is the feedback I’m getting. We’ll certainly look at other ways of bridging that gap. That doesn’t necessarily mean that we’re going to issue an emergency alert every time. We still have to evaluate that on a case by case basis.
Senator Blum: Part of the issue is the way social media works, that information is being communicated that way, through telephone, if you will. I think one of the benefits here would be, I don’t know that it would solve anything, but at least people would be getting accurate information, from people who are informed about what it is an anxiety-provoking situation. That was just sort of my, a lot of thoughts, I don’t know.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Appreciate that. I mean, they did get accurate information. The community update that was sent the next morning was based on the information that Normal Police released. So again, one of the complications here is, you know, a difference between an on-campus situation in which my department has the responsibility to respond to and put information out on versus another agency, which is their primary area of responsibility to respond to, and they need to control what information they’re willing to share to put out. So that can lead, particularly for off-campus situations, it can lead to some delay in getting information out there.
Chairperson Bonnell: First, it’s Senator Riverstone.
Senator Riverstone: Looking at the map, you might think of that as an off-campus event, and technically it may be, but the proximity of that event was so close to campus. The presumption must have been that there were students involved, and in that case, since no shooters had been identified, and it was a fast moving situation with no answers, I would think that that would elevate the level of concern pretty high to notify others in case that shooter was driving around looking for another group of students to target. It seems to me like that was a ball dropped.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: So again, I’m relying on my supervisor on duty to make a quick judgment decision based on all those factors we talked. I’ve said I will support his decision as long as it’s not blatantly wrong or blatantly completely out of the way. But as he described to me what his thought process was on that, I’m going to stand by his decision. But I could also just as easily have stood by a decision to send an emergency alert out, in which case we did a couple weeks before. We continue to have those discussions about thinking about all the factors and making sure we’re trying to get that information out quickly as quickly as we can. But it won’t always be probably as quickly or as informative as people would like, unfortunately.
Senator Riverstone: Well, I appreciate that, I think though that multiple people being shot…
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Again, I tried to express the chaos of that situation and as we’re gathering that information. It wasn’t apparent multiple people were shot initially. It took a little bit of time for all that information to come in.
Senator Riverstone: Okay, then let’s just say one person being shot.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Again, it’s going to be a case by case basis. There have been other incidents that have happened in the community in which we have not sent any emergency alert out for.
Senator Riverstone: Well, I suggest that we would be having an entirely different conversation if that shooter had gone around the block and picked another group of students.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: That changes the whole discussion and the thought process of what we put the information out for. There’s a lot of different, you could “what if” a lot of different things and it could change the dynamics, which changes that decision making.
Senator Figeuroa: I am an off-campus senator I represent the students that live off-campus. Along with my constituents I was also out and about. I was on my way back from downtown walking to my house because it was beautiful outside. What we were thinking was is there a way of ISU connecting with Normal Police as they were the ones in charge of the situation for them to send us an alert on what’s going on. It was two in the morning. All this is happening and we got no information until later. Like my mom was calling me freaking out. She found out before me and I was walking by there as the situation was happening.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Yes, as of right now, I don’t believe Normal Police has the capability of putting out an emergency notification, which is why they typically put out a press release to share that information via social media. I can certainly have additional conversations with Chief Petrelli, and I think maybe that’s something we as a university could try to find ways to partner better with them. As I mentioned, Eric and I have talked through a means in which the Safe Redbirds app, which I’m not sure how many of you have downloaded, but there is a way for it to receive push notifications if people accept it when they download the app. Currently, the emergency alerts and crime advisories are connected to that push notification feature. We’re looking at a way, can we get those community updates which again, are primarily incidents that are happening off campus, not on campus, that we can then connect it that way. Again, it’s not the same thing as a text alert, but it would send something that at least you’d be able to see on your screen as long as you’re accepting that notification.
Senator Jain: When the incident did happen was anybody in the immediate area actually notified because I live on South University Street. That’s five minutes away from where it happened, walking distance. And I found out about the incident two or three days later. Once my friends pointed out to me and I searched up the location, I was extremely surprised it was so near me, but I just had no idea about what happened.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Yes, so that again, it was issued through the community update, which is again, the complication is when you’re talking about an off-campus situation and there’s no clear distinct boundaries where students live and where students don’t live. We have students that live at the Oaks on Hovey, we have students that live in Bloomington, we have students that live throughout this entire community. It’s really hard to find, identify, students who live here to get this notification, students who live here get this notification. The best way we have is through the means that I’ve mentioned, which is either emergency alert, a crime advisory, or community update. Those are the only capabilities we have to do that.
Senator Seifert: I just had a question. Did the Normal Police Department prohibit you guys from sending out an alert? Did they ask you not to do it?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: No, they did not. I want to be very clear that they did not. There have been times in which they have asked us in the past for others not this situation, but other incidents like, “Hey, can you hold off putting anything out? We’re still trying to get information and things like that.” So again, we have to work in partnership with them and not get ahead of putting information out, especially information that isn’t accurate or information that could harm an investigation if they have something that’s ongoing. In this particular case, that wasn’t part of the decision process. They were very forthright, “Here’s what we have.” And they shared it with our people at the time.
Senator Porter: I appreciate the review going on and looking at the procedures. I would like to comment that we look broader at systematic reasons why this is happening. And we explore with our town and gown between the cities to bring our student leadership and our administrators together. In the fall, they have the town and gown, but it is an ongoing thing. to bring the towns and our students together, especially our off-campus students, to bring solutions to our community. Gun violence is exploding across the nation. I love college towns. I love this town. I’m an alumna here. We have to attack the problem, the root of the problem. The root isn’t the police force. It’s people who live here. We all have to take ownership and figure this out. And we have committed faculty. We have students who love this place. I think we could bring that time and talent together to do that.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: I definitely appreciate the comment and I think that is probably going to be the only way we can get a solution to this. I will also say that we are not alone in this issue. Unfortunately, our friends just down the road have a very similar problem and at the same day, which we had our incident they had, for sure, a young man that was shot and killed in their local mall during kind of a takeover situation in there. And they have weekly issues with gun violence around their campus as well. So all my peers, my colleagues, we’re all struggling trying to find a solution to this problem because again, we hear the same thing. They hear from their students; we hear from our students. They’re scared and they’re concerned and they have a reason to be. When, fortunately, we have individuals in our society and even in this community that are showing up to events that our college students in the past felt safe at and would have been perfectly fine and safe at being at, but these individuals are showing up with their own conflicts and their means of solving conflict isn’t doing it in nice ways. We’re unfortunately a microcosm of societal issues right now.
Senator Shourek: I just want to start by saying thank you so much for your clarity on the decision making. I just want to give a little context by saying I’m also an off-campus senator for student government and I’ve spoken to quite a few of my constituents about the incident. While I do understand the threat analysis that went into the process and the idea by the supervisor that there wasn’t an immediate emergency, I would just like to suggest and say that it may be beneficial to learn more just in case. I know what Senator Riverstone was saying earlier was what-ifs and you said that we can do what-ifs all day which is true of course but at the end of the day, one extra notification, that may make some wake someone up and bother them, but also when we consider student life and when we consider night life and what was going on at the time. I mean, you hear it all the time, but better safe than sorry. And I know I have a lot of people who are out at that time and I know a lot of students were up at that time. So I would just like to say that more leniency on those sort of notifications, those emergencies may be beneficial. 
Senator Susami: Thank you again for coming to speak with us tonight. We understand that these decisions are not just one person making these on-the-fly decisions. But I would also like to mention that there are several frats and sororities right on Franklin and right nearby. There’s Farm House, there’s Phi Sigma Sigma, there’s Tri Delta right down the street. So of course there are students living in those off campus areas and again I know that it’s a case by case basis and I understand that the decision-making is happening so quickly that it’s hard to tell what is what and the threat analysis must happen quickly, but I would like to kind of echo what Senator Shourek was saying and just going forward, students would really, really appreciate just erring on the side of caution every time.
Senator Sweedler: Once again, thank you for coming to speak to us. I would also like to say, as I spoke to my constituents, a lot of them echo the same idea of if they knew there was a situation happening, they would have chosen how they traveled or where they went a lot differently. A lot of them were going towards the areas in which these situations were happening, seeing what was going on, trying to find a way out of the situation when they were never a part of it in the first place. I had a constituent who was just going to get food and got roped into the situation and if they had a simple notification saying there was something happening around this area, they would have chosen the path they took very differently. I know a lot of students would appreciate just a little more open communication when something like this is happening off campus in a way that they can receive it even if they’re not on a platform that the notifications are getting sent out like Redbird or Safe Redbirds. Thank you.
Senator Jannu: So thank you for joining us, for answering these questions again. For context, I’m an off-campus student as well, and I didn’t hear about this until a couple of days after my friend told me. This isn’t something new, so I was wondering why wasn’t this brought up before about how to expand notifying students beyond social media?
Chief Aaron Woodruff: So it isn’t actually new. It’s, you know, I’ve been in law enforcement in this community for almost, well, over 28 years now. And it’s unfortunately, been something that’s happened. It’s happened. Like I mentioned in other places where our students reside. I know Hartwin Ridge apartments had multiple incidents of that up there. We’ve had up off a Trader’s Circle, I don’t know if it’s called Junction Place still or not. Oaks on Hovey, the Lodge has had incidents before. We’ve had other incidents over the years and we’ve tried to fine tune this process better. Initially, when I first took over, I tried creating an if-then chart for our officers to understand a flow chart. And that, too, wasn’t working. And so, unfortunately, what we found is a lot of these situations are really unique and different. 
I mentioned that there are some universities that truly say, you know, emergency alerts are for on-campus only. That is what is legally required. They stick by that, and for them, it’s a decision because otherwise they’d be sending alerts out every single day. They worry about, “alert fatigue.” I had an incident one time, a parent called me. It was a few years ago. There was an incident at a Walmart on Veterans Parkway and I think it was a shooting of some sort and apparently was very upset we didn’t send any emergency alert out on it and I said well that’s not really by campus and now again what is by campus is subjective just like everything else we’re talking about very subjective, but she felt it was close to campus and I said, “well it wasn’t.” She said, “well you still should have sent it out because that’s where students shop.” 
You know we can’t be responsible for sending emergency alerts out throughout everywhere in the community so we have to kind of be smart about how we’re doing this, which is why we expanded it to be places where students generally reside is a factor that we consider now that we didn’t previously. So we’re still, again, everything we’re fine-tuning these things. This is another learning opportunity for us. And, like I said, I don’t know that we’re going to solve everybody’s concerns each time. I can tell you the times that we send emergency alerts out I get to hear from people every time we send one out too. I get to hear so everybody certainly has thoughts on when we send them out and that they’re not informative enough. Again, if the point is to get the information out quickly to take imminent action, we don’t have a lot of information to give you at that point. It does take time. We’re trying to work through the process and we’ll continue to do so. And I imagine we’ll continue to be working on this long after I’m gone as well.
Senator Johnson: I just want to wrap it up again by thanking Chief Woodruff and Eric Hodges for showing up. Thank you all for the feedback. It’s through this kind of conversation and I think you mentioned it earlier, conversation amongst our community, our local community, and getting truly towards the heart of what is causing this, not a reactive, the reactive is a piece, but the cause of this as well. It’d be great if we didn’t have these incidents occurring, and it’s going to take all of us partnering together, especially with the students. Again, many of these things that have occurred have been large gatherings. Hundreds of people. That’s not going to be a good recipe for safety moving forward. Things can happen, especially when it comes to youth showing up at these gatherings, people from other communities, Chicago, St. Louis, and so on. We’ve got to all work together in order to address the root of this. I think you’re right. We have to partner with the Town of Normal, Bloomington, our departments, as well in order to get at the root of all of this.
Senator Stoner: I understand we’re talking about big gatherings, but we also need to take into the account that students walk by these streets every single day. I personally live off campus and live next to the Constitution Trail, and who’s to say that one’s not walking by and happens to get caught up in these situations. So let’s just not think about the big groups, let’s think about the people who are innocent bystanders as well, they get caught up into these.
Senator Lucey: I’d like to thank LJ for his comments and his affirmation of direction. But I also think that the idea of having a safe community is rather narrow and doesn’t go into the depth that we need to think about. I think we need to think about the definition and the nature and access to our university community. We need to think about how students and members of the community engage in social media. We need to learn how to resolve our differences of opinion in amical manners. And we need to think about defining the university plans. What would it be like to have a pedestrian campus with limited access to outsiders such that we can have a more safe environment where we have processes of dialogue and safe communication? This is a very deep conversation and it’s going to take a lot of work and I would hope that we look at it in a comprehensive manner.
Chairperson Bonnell: Thank you, everyone, for all of your questions. And again, thank you to VP Johnson for inviting Chief Woodruff and Director Hodges. I really appreciate it. I really appreciate your time. I really appreciate everyone asking these questions and doing it in a really respectful way. Thank you for coming here on a Wednesday evening. You’ve probably had a really long week. So I appreciate everyone in here for their contributions to this really concerning issue that doesn’t seem to be going away. If there’s anything Academic Senate can do, or SGA, anything we can do to help out with that, please let us know. I would love to be part of the solution and looking for constructive ways of improving this.
Chief Aaron Woodruff: Appreciate it. Thank you.

· Vice President for Finance and Planning Glen Nelson

Senator Nelson: Thank you. I’d like to introduce two new staff members tonight, and if they could stand when I call them. Last month, we had our new Chief Data and Institutional Effectiveness Officer join us, Erin Mulligan-Lynn. She’s over the PRPA group: Planning, Research, Policy,and Analysis and we have moved the EDA, or enterprise data analytics group, out of OIT and under that position. Erin, welcome. She comes to us from Texas A&M Corpus Christi. And we had our new Associate Vice President of Facilities start last week, Jonathan Gibb, he’s joining us from Utah Tech. He’s coming at a very important time as we have a number of capital projects that we’re lining up for the next couple of years. Thank you. 
I also want to let everyone know that we posted a recruitment tonight or last night for the Associate Vice President and Chief Information Officer that it will be an expanded role going forward and we are beginning a search on that in the coming months as well. 
Now is something that’s where I need all of your help. I’m going to channel our president here for just a moment. If you recall last year, the equitable access formula or equitable funding formula in the legislature did not pass. It is back going through the legislature again this year. And I think some of you have heard me say multiple times that we’re the lowest funded on a per student funding basis university in Illinois. Considerably lower than average and considerably lower than everyone else. It would be nice if we had a funding formula that got us up to the average. This doesn’t do it, but it does move. It would give us more money than they give us currently, provided that it’s funded. 
We need everyone’s help in that.  You’ll either be receiving an email shortly from Kevin and the Senate Office that has a witness slip on there and we need to have the witness slips in by I believe tomorrow morning at 8 a.m. If you have time and you’re so inclined to fill one of those out and send it in, it will help. The President shared with me that there was a strong belief last year that because University of Illinois was the only university that did not sign on in support; they had a significant number of witness slips filed. And it’s not that this would guarantee it goes forward, but when they do not have a lot of witness slips in favor of the bill and there’s a lot against it, that does weigh some of the member’s votes. You’ll be receiving an email shortly after the meeting if not during the meeting and I would appreciate any support you can give. And then I have open up for any questions. 
Senator Meyer: I believe I did a witness slip, which I can see on there, but I did it, I don’t know, months ago at some other point. In the discussions that I’ve had with colleagues. There’s a question of, is there a different witness slip for the amendment to the bill that’s presently being considered than the original bill? And if you signed originally, does that count this time? Because I believe the link that was emailed earlier this week to the campus, it goes to the original bill’s witness slip. If I have that correct.
Senator Johnson: I remember getting a specific message from Brad Franke with instructions to actually do the newer bill and not the older one. That’s what I did.
Senator Meyer: Could I ask that we make sure that link is to the right witness slip that would be for this newest version?
Senator Johnson: We’ll check on that. 
Senator Nelson: Thank you for that clarification. Are there any other questions?
Senator Paolucci: Do we know why ISU is the least funded?
Senator Nelson: That’s a historical artifact of the way funding is done in Illinois. I’ve read nothing about the why. It may have something to do with as enrollments have dropped significantly at our sister institutions, their funding has not dropped accordingly. And so the funding is still based upon historical levels that have been funded in the past. We don’t have a funding formula in the state that follows students if you will. It’s a historical number that has not been adjusted. As we either not increase students or we increase students, we don’t necessarily get more state funding. This new bill attempts to tie funding to relative growth. It’s not a strictly voucher system or all funds follow students.
Chairperson Bonnell: I will say that I’ve received this email a couple different ways. And I’ve received one from Brad Franke, so I will make sure that one, if Kevin hasn’t sent it tonight, that’s what I will do tonight since it needs to be completed by 8 a.m. before the hearing. Tonight, after I leave Senate, I will double check, and thank you, Senator Meyer for the question, and will send the correct one. 
Senator Porter: Can I suggest that we lift up our civic engagement pillar and educate our faculty, staff, and students about the witness slips and that it’s a civically engaged activity. It’s not a political activity. I’m a chair of civil service and I brought it to our civil service committee and some more saying that’s political. We can’t do that. But it’s in a UMC article, so there’s confusion with staff. How do our students feel who are politically engaged in SGA? This is a great educational point that we could be uplifting and have a lot of witness slips if we had a forum, because there’s a lot of other bills and things that we have in our different colleges and different associations. I want us to consider a way that’s centralized through maybe Brad’s office or something. I don’t have a solution, but I think we have people here who could come up with a solution.
Senator Nelson: Thank you, Senator Porter. I will take that back to cabinet. I would like to seek more clarification for myself because I’m not sure where that gray line is as to how much we can promote as that gets into lobbying versus an awareness. We’ll look into that. 
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Motion by Senator Porter.
Second by Senator Shourek. 
Unanimous approval. 

Information Items:
From the Academic Affairs Committee: Dimitrios Nikolaou 
06.04.2024.03 - 4.1.22 Recording in Instructional settings (new policy)
Link to clean copy
Senator Nikolaou: Last time we went through the policy from end to beginning, just a quick overview of the main things that the policy includes- It prohibits unauthorized or surreptitious recording. All instructors may authorize recording and only for clearly defined instructional or accommodation purposes. When a class is being recorded, instructors must provide clear notice both on the syllabus and verbally at the start of the recording sessions. Any recording that includes identifiable student information must be stored in the LMS only and access must be restricted to students enrolled in that specific class section. Faculty can use recordings of their lectures, for example, if they do not include any student identifiable information. 
The policy allows the students to record only for formal accommodations, and also it includes a provision where instructors are strongly recommended to pause recording during sensitive conversations. Since our last time when we met we’ve made changes. Thank you for some clarifications that we got on the floor from Senator Paolucci and Senator Marshack. We got some questions from Senator Peters’ positions. We got some questions from Senator Lucey. And then we had the public comment if you remember from Dr. Horst. So, I met with all the directors from the College of Fine Arts, because at that point, most of the questions they were more about the public performances and what’s going to happen with recitals and all these things. So just a couple of things, and one of the common themes, it was that it was not clear from individuals who were reading the policy for the first time that if it is a public event, it is not covered by the policy. We made some additions so that we can clarify some of these things. 
Some of the questions from Senator Peters’ constituents, they were, what if we are out in a field trip? What if we are in a study abroad? But all of these, they were more on the public space. One addition that we made that you don’t see yet, because we just added it in our committee tonight, under the general provisions, we added an item E, where it says, “Instructional setting is a controlled environment in which course related teaching and learning occur, including but not limited to classrooms, labs, studios, clinical settings, and in-person and online meetings. Instructional settings do not include public or publicly accessible spaces where no reasonable expectation of privacy exists.” So that makes it clear that when, because there were several questions about athletic events, when with the pep band, when the band is on the quad, what happens? That makes it clear because these are public spaces. 
Also, just before section two, immediately after the policy where we talk about the lab schools and how the lab schools are managed by the lab schools’ student contact handbook. We also added public artistic performances, recitals, conferences, athletic events, and other public scholarly or cultural events, even when tied to course requirements, are not governed by the policy. And the key in that case, it is the clause where it says “even when tied to course requirements,” because we had several cases where we were told that we have it as a requirement for our class, but they need to go and attend a specific event. And that’s why we say that these are not governed by this policy. And then in other item, it would have to do more to make it clear that if it is for pedagogical purposes, there could be some type of an exception. The example that we got was from Music, the example that we were given is sometimes let’s say we have a percussion class, and then we have a musical instrument class, and then students who are in the percussion class, they may have to go to the musical instrument class because they have a composer. They want to attend and then they need to use what they recorded from the composer in order to bring it back to their percussion class. That’s why, under the recording by instructors, we added two sentences where it says, “Instructors may record instructional activities for legitimate pedagogical purposes. This includes, but not limited to lecture capture, demonstration videos, materials used for curriculum development, assessment, or accreditation.” The policy that you see, it reflects comments from Student Access and Accommodation Services, from the Office of the Provost, from the Office of the General Council, from the deans, from the Student Conduct Office. We do have several other questions that I could explain how we address in the policy. But let’s open it through the floor. Otherwise, I’m going to go through some of the questions. 
There was a question. It was from Senator Peters’ constituents. There was a question, what if we have a law enforcement who has a bodycam? Are we going to instruct them to turn off their camera? That one is from FERPA, because FERPA has a specific clause about law enforcement. In which cases it follows in the case where it is allowed by the law. In which cases it follows under education records, so it is protected by FERPA. Senator Lucey’s question was that sometimes when exploring a science method class, they may use cameras to record phenomena such as falling objects, candle flames, in order to study them repeatedly or in slow motion. How would this practice affect the proposed policy? So, if the recordings are used only for that specific class and they are not shared with other students or other classes, it’s fine. This is allowed. Let’s say you recorded this year; let’s say about the candle flames, and you want to use it for a future semester, as long as the recording just includes that part, it doesn’t include identifiable information for students, then that’s also fine. The policy allows it to be used.
Senator Hammond: So I just have a quick question. Let’s say you’re in a lecture with like 200 students and a student gets an accommodation from SAAS to record the lectures. Does that go back to the first paragraph where the student is required to obtain consent from all the students in that course if they might capture them?

Senator Nikolaou: If it’s just recording the lectures and it doesn’t capture any of the other students, that’s not a problem. But also because it is for SAAS, SAAS recordings are allowed. We do not need to get permission from all the different students. Actually, I guess I should mention that part too. That was another question. It was from Fine Arts as well. Because some of the school directors, they said we do have some classes where are recording all the time. What can we do? Because we do have the clause under three “recording by instructors,” where we say that it needs to be provided written in the course syllabus, supplemented by a verbal announcement in the beginning of each recording session. One way to do it is to include language on the syllabus, where it says that we are going to be recording it, and we are going to be recording pretty much for the majority of the classes. Also, that clause, if the Senate believes that we don’t need it, it was just an additional safeguard. Because when we looked at other policies, some policies, most of the policies they refer to, it needs to be included on the syllabus. Some just say that because it’s not as common to record all sessions. It’s going to be only some of them, they just say that we are going to announce it at the beginning of its class session. And then there are some at other universities where they include both. We added both, but then if we think that it is too restrictive, we can remove that cause. And then because CIPD or actually we can also come up with a required language for the syllabus, we can have one option where it includes that it is highly, strongly encouraged to announce at the beginning of its class that the class is going to be recorded, but it needs to be included on the syllabus.
From the Academic Affairs Committee: Dimitrios Nikolaou 
02.04.2026.01 - 4.1.18 Credit Earned through Transfer, Examination, and Prior Learning
Link to current policy
Link to markup
Senator Nikolaou: So this is the policy on Credit Earned Through Transfer Examination and Prior Learning. If we do not see it once a year, something is wrong. [laughter] The main change is at the very last page. It is the added sentence, where we now talk about the American Sign Language and how credit is going to be rewarded. We say six credits are going to come from ACD-130 and the remaining two hours are going to come from LAN-112 and Senator Hurd that was because ACD changed their classes from 2 to 3 And then the other thing is just adding the sections and the subsections because on the website, if you go and look at it, it is pretty unclear where a section starts and when a subsection. These are pretty much the only things.
From the Rules Committee: Rick Valentin 
10.23.25.01 - Appendix II – Remove Academic Facilities Priority Report
Link to current Appendix II
Link to markup
Senator Valentin: The main original intent of this request was to remove the academic facilities report from the Planning and Finance Committee’s function number six. Under the new budget process, there’s no longer an academic facilities report to review so that report has been removed from the committee functions. Then Rules has expanded our revision to do some editorial house cleaning on Appendix II overall and so some of  those items are correcting the format of ex-officio throughout the appendix, replacing the term “and be in accord” with “in accordance” to make it consistent with usage across the bylaws, removing some stray bolding and emphasis in the current copy, and then updating committee membership from administrative/professional or civil service council to just “Staff Council” to take into account the merging of those councils. 
Under “election of members of the executive committee of the Senate,” we’ve attempted to clarify the language regarding the timing of the meetings to endorse and approve executive committee members. The current language reads, “Faculty Senators nominated for the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate shall be endorsed by the Faculty Caucus in a special meeting held during the last meeting of the spring semester. The final list of faculty senator nominees shall be submitted to the Academic Senate for vote during the first meeting at the end of the spring semester.” The issue we’re trying to address here is defining the last meeting of the Senate year and the first meeting of the Senate year. Elsewhere in the bylaws, for instance, referring to the election of faculty members, “the newly elected academic senators will be seated at the first meeting of the Academic Senate in May.” That’s used to describe the first meeting of a new term of the Academic Senate. Our suggested revision to that language is to have it read, “Faculty Senators nominated for the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate shall be endorsed by the Faculty Caucus in a special meeting held during the last meeting of the Academic Senate in April.” And then, “The final list of Faculty Senator nominees shall be submitted to the Academic Senate for vote during the first meeting of the Academic Senate in May.” And then last but not least, under the Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee functions removal of 5B, providing oversight of the Academic Impact Fund, removing that because the AIF is not part of the new budget process. So those are the revisions we have for Appendix II.
Senator Meyer: We are in the AABC committee currently. We just voted tonight to approve the AIF report that goes to Executive Committee of the Academic Senate. We have recommendations for how to revise or amend the part of the bylaws. I believe this is on page five of my document where you have that task of the AIF report deleted. We want to amend that to put in different language. So my question is, is there plenty of time for you to pause our report to go through executive committee and us to get the proper language to replace what’s being deleted in there?
Senator Valentin: So what I would say is the the revisions that we’re proposing in this document are, I would say editorial and responsive to changes for modifying the budget functions or functions related to budget for the Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee and then also, I would say the Planning and Finance Committee. We feel that that’s a more substantial revision to be reviewed. We have the position that those changes should be submitted through a different revision that’s directed towards taking into account changes in the budget process and in implementing.
Senator Meyer: Do you find it problematic that as part of our shared governance, AABC receives the AIF report now through the new budget model that’s handled through colleges and distributed down to departments and schools and by deleting the section, section 5B, you have not replaced that with a similar or corollary function of oversight and shared governance. That seems to me to go beyond editorial changes and to strip away shared governance.
Senator Valentin: My response to that is that there isn’t an academic impact fund report going forward. The removal of that is just reacting to the fact that that report will not exist. Now in terms of determining the committee functions and their relation to the budget process, that to me is, yes, there is a serious issue or serious revisions or review that needs to be done about the committee functions related to the budget. That replacement of those, I wouldn’t say there’s a direct corollary to replacing the academic impact fund. But there is an essential sort of need to address and revise the committee functions of both the AABC and the Planning and Finance committee to address how those committees are going to be interacting in relation to the budget process.
Chairperson Bonnell: In Exec we talked about this and what was changing and I mentioned that you had mentioned to me, that you had some suggestions. During the Executive Committee meeting we discussed the idea as Chair Valentin just mentioned that we need to review more thoroughly. We could take a comprehensive look at the functions of the Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee and the Planning and Finance committee. Part of what you are suggesting, that your committee has created, would go into that review and because there’s many things have changed given the budget remodel. It could be an ad hoc committee that reviews those changes. Your concerns would be addressed there. 
Senator Meyer: I get the AIF is going away. There’s no doubt that language needs to be updated. But I don’t see why replacing the AIF report with whatever the new language is that would serve in the same capacity because AIF covers new tenure track hires. We still will have, under this new budget model, that’s kind of mysterious and we don’t know exactly how it’s playing out, but we will still have money or funds that go for new tenure track hires. It also covered what was known as instructional capacity, so the temporary funds, those funds will still exist. Albeit they operate from and are supervised from a different office. That seems like an editorial revision, right? You’re replacing AIF with whatever that new thing is called, and you’re replacing Office of the Provost issuing that report to the AABC committee with whoever that new university administrative position is that would report to the committee. That seems editorial to me. Tell me why not.
Senator Nelson: I am probably not addressing the last part of your question, but let me talk about AIF for a moment. In today’s environment, yes, you’re correct. AIF is funded by those savings and come back to the Provost Office, and then the Provost Office distributes those dollars to the colleges for tenure track hires and other hires. In the future model, those savings from vacant positions stay with the college. It’ll no longer be dollars that go from the college to populate AIF at the Provost Office and then the Provost Office to determine how to send that back to the colleges. I know that doesn’t say what will the new report be, but the new structure is, there’s still those dollars available. It’s just they’re controlled for the most part at the dean level now, rather than the provost.
Senator Valentin: I would say that there’s not a direct corollary to the academic impact fund.
Senator Meyer: I don’t understand why not. Different names for the fund, different people or offices supervising it. Same purposes, same functions. We are still making tenure track hires. That is in interest of the shared governance that we are apprised of that process. How many hires are made? New hires, number of retirements, number of resignations. All the information that we used to get with the AIF is still going to exist somewhere. Someone can still collect that. Someone can still apprise this body of that information.
Senator Nelson: You are correct. I think you could produce a report of all tenure track hires within a given period of time by college. The funding flows different, but we still can report new faculty hires. And then I think you have your oversight in that regard.
Senator Lucey: May I suggest that this removal from the policy of information related to the academic impact fund be postponed until the academic impact fund is no longer?
Senator Valentin: I thought the issue we were addressing is that there’s no replacement for the academic impact fund.
Senator Lucey: There is no replacement at this point, but we still have the fund. In fact, we’re developing a report for it. So I would suggest that we delay the removal of that oversight, at least until we have completed our processes. And then when we know what the new system is, then we add that to the policy.
Chairperson Bonnell: One of the things I mentioned at the beginning of the year, the academic year, was we are in a state of transition. When I see some of these changes, for me, I’m going to go back to what Chair Valentin said, which is there’s some editorial comments, and then there’s some things that require a lot more thoughtful discussion. I agree with what you were saying, both Senator Meyer and Senator Lucey, but I wonder if there’s, if there was a dedicated ad hoc committee to take a look at these things so we can make some language, create some language that actually makes sense holistically with what is going on. I believe in what you’re saying, Senator Meyer, that your committee has recommendations and I would love to consider incorporating those into the functions. I’ll refer back to Chair Valentin on this idea of Senator Lucy’s suggestion of keeping it and what that means, since it doesn’t exist.
Senator Valentin: Yeah, I’ll respond to that. I would like to suggest that, if we are considering the functions of this committee and Planning and Finance Committee, that should be done, not through an ad hoc committee, but through the Rules Committee, which is in the functions of the Rules Committee, is to review and suggest changes to bylaws and more specifically, committee functions.
Chairperson Bonnell: Yes the new functions of the Rules Committee we approved earlier this year.
Senator Blum: The AIF just to understand, you’re working on that report now, right? What’s up for consideration is- by the time that we actually vote on this change, the report, it’s kind of two ships passing in the night. I think it seems like the last report is going to happen before we actually change the bylaws. We could look in to that if there needs to be a particular sunset date, we should do that. My suggestion would be not to put off language for something that doesn’t exist anymore. There is going to be one last report. That will be it. For the other part, I think it seems like it is a distributed process now as opposed to a centralized one, is that correct? By necessity, to have a similar thing we would have to gather from the colleges the same information essentially before we have some name for doing that or process, and then you would generate the similar oversight that Senator Meyer is suggesting. Is that a sensible thought? 
Senator Nelson: Yes, because the Provost Office still has to authorize hires. They’ll be tracking all of the new hires. The information will come from the colleges through them. In essence, the report you’re getting with AIF right now is, “here’s a summary of the tenure track faculty that we hired over the past year,” or whatever period that report is. That can be gathered in the future. It just doesn’t come from “AIF funds,” because AIF funds will be sunset.
From the Rules Committee: Rick Valentin 
08.21.25.01 - CAST Bylaws
Link to current bylaws
Link to markup
Senator Valentin: These are revisions to the College of Applied Science and Technology Bylaws, and we did see these previously as an information item in November, but these, what we’re seeing tonight are updates and response to feedback from that session in November and from the General Counsel. Quick overview of what changes have been implemented since that time, are considerable proofreading and minor editing for clarification throughout the documents. 
Under Article 1, the removal of the requirement that a cast council chairperson be a faculty member, and in Article 1, Section 8 definitions, that section was eliminated for simplicity and clarity. 
Under Article 3, adding staff to be eligible to vote in college referenda and then the addition of sections on appointment procedures for assistant deans and associate deans in appendix 4. And so this new revision has been approved unanimously by the CAST Council. And we do have Dean of CAST, Dr. Chad McVoy here to help answer any questions may have about these revisions.
Senator Nikolaou: I’ll start from the end towards the beginning. This one is on page 25, section 4C, where it talks about, the committee shall arrange the selected candidates, typically for at least three to be interviewed, but then there is a clause where it says “faculty/staff of the department school, excluding on-campus candidates.” Maybe that’s a question for AVP Bonneville, but I think that whenever we are doing a search, we are always told that we need to have exactly the same process for everyone, no matter if they are internal or external candidates. If an external candidate is meeting with faculty and staff, then an internal candidate should also with faculty and staff. My question is, do we need to remove that clause where it says excluding on-campus candidates? Page 25, it is item C, and it’s pretty much the middle of the paragraph.
Dean Chad McEvoy: If I’m understanding your questions, Senator Nikolaou, it’s about whether a member of the faculty is also a candidate for a position like chair that they would be asked not to attend interview sessions and, it’s my understanding from working with HR that that’s pretty standard practice that, if you’re a candidate and you actively participate in the interview process with other candidates, that that would cause challenges with the search process. That’s my experience in working with HR and Janice Bonneville can chime in if she disagrees. [AVP Bonneville agreed with the statement.]
Senator Nikolaou: This section actually says “with whom the candidates are going to meet… the committee shall arrange for the selected candidates to be interviewed…” and then it lists all the different groups. So, if I’m an internal candidate, I should still meet with the faculty and the staff of the department similarly to someone who is an external candidate. So, if I’m an internal candidate, I’m not going to meet with the external candidates who are coming.
Dean Chad McEvoy: Right. That’s the intent of that language is that if you were an internal candidate, you would not participate in other candidates. You would be excluded from participating. If you were an internal candidate for the chair position and chair Bonnell was also a candidate, you would not participate in her interview process so as to not bias the process. That’s why they’re being excluded. I think you’re misinterpreting the language.
Senator Nikolaou: Maybe it needs to be clarified because it says we are going to arrange for selected candidates to meet with all these groups. And one of them, it is faculty/staff of the department.
Dean Chad McEvoy: Right, so Chair Bonnell would meet with the rest of faculty excluding you.
Senator Nikolaou: Yes. So as long as they are going to still meet with all the faculty.
Dean Chad McEvoy: They are. That’s our existing practice. 
Senator Nikolaou: The other ones are pretty tiny like on page 21 under section three instead of starting with “the” it should be starting like the list with “A” like ABC and then on page 12 under appendix 1, section 2A. This is the appendix where it talks about the curriculum committee, where it says with all the different groups. My question is because at the end of where it says the Associate Vice President for Undergraduate Education, should it be the Office of the Provost in general, because since the committee does undergrad and grad, should it list also the Associate Vice President for Graduate Education? That was the other thing. The other which I think Senator Valentin clarified the change under section six about who is chair of the college council, where the sentence was deleted that it needs to be a faculty member, either was intentional, because that was a sentence compared to the last time we saw it.
Dean Chad McEvoy: Right, and just after receiving extensive feedback from you and the Senate, we discussed a number of revisions and the council agreed that all of the members, faculty and staff, should be eligible to serve as chair of the council.
Senator Nikolaou: Actually, a question that we had in Exec was, what about a student? Because in principle, if we delete the whole sentence, a student could become the chair of the council, since they are members of the council.
Dean Chad McEvoy:  I think our students are great participants in our shared governance practices and I would welcome that possibility.
Motion to extend the hard stop time by 10 minutes by Senator Shourek. 
Second by Senator Porter. 
Unanimous approval.

From the Planning and Finance Committee: Aaron Paolucci
06.04.2024.20 - 9.2 Appropriate Use Policy
Link to current policy
Link to markup
9.2 overview supplement
Briefing outline on the state of information security at Illinois State University
Senator Paolucci: Thank you. The version 9.2 that is linked in the Senate agenda this evening is the same version you had in front of you from the March 4th meeting. Just prior to this Senate meeting Planning and Finance reviewed and voted on updated language and that updated version will likely be presented to the Senate for our next meeting. The changes P&F voted on tonight include: again, you’re going to be looking at an old document and I’m going to be referencing new materials tied to that old document. Under Section A5 use of artificial intelligence, there were four subsections. They were just simply reordered based on their content for a more logical read. Under Section D2, information privacy and security/university rights. There were two subsections. There was D2.1 and D2.2 That’s been expanded to three subsections. D2 one was expanded to clarify user rights in the university’s access scope and that language will be in front of you for the next meeting. D2.2 was added for more procedural clarity on how the university might access IT resources during an investigation, and D2.3, which was the old D2.2, was expanded to reinforce the policy’s commitment to protect individuals’ personal data on their personal devices outside of university managed resources, and to reinforce the idea of constitutional protections and civil liberties. Those are the fundamental changes that we’ve made, primarily a tweak to A5 artificial intelligence and sort of an expansion of the D portion of the policy where it comes to information privacy and security, and university rights. Finally, our expert witness, P&F’s 9.2 subject matter expert, Dan Taube was unable to attend this evening, so we may have to get back to you with answers to questions that we may not be able to answer in real time.
Chairperson Bonnell: Thank you, Chair Palucci. I will add, I don’t think you mentioned that this has been reviewed, the latest changes, just today by the Office of General Counsel and they find the changes acceptable, so I wanted to add that. Are there any questions?
Senator Paolucci: I’m just going to add, sorry, I recognize this is awkward for you to have questions on language that is not in front of you currently. We’re sort of describing the nature of the changes, and you will have those materials the next time around.
Senator Nikolaou: The question I had is because Senator Beasley last time he had questions, if he has seen the changes and if they address the concerns that you had.
Senator Paolucci: I’ll start and maybe Senator Beasley can follow up with that answer. Senator Beasley and I met one-on-one. We spent an hour together talking about some of his suggested changes and some of his concerns. Senator Beasley also met with the entire Planning and Finance Committee this evening to sort of continue that conversation. We’ve had two opportunities, one-on-one with me and there was a 35 minutes given to that conversation during the P&F Committee meeting this evening.
Senator Beasley: Yeah, given what we spoke about, I have, it’s all good. Everything’s resolved.
Chairperson Bonnell: Thank you, Senator Beasley. I would add that it was a really great conversation and I’m going to look to Senator Nelson. You very eloquently made a comment in committee, so I would look to you now, would you like to share what you added earlier?
Senator Nelson: Yes; I’d like to thank Senator Beasley for his ardent pushback on the committee. As a result, I think we have a better product. There was some language that is introduced that further defines such access as monitoring or inspection will be conducted only when reasonably necessary or something to that effect. I think that actually strengthens safeguards for students and for faculty and staff. And I think it makes the policy much stronger within the body of law that exists. So thank you, Senator Beasley.
Internal Committee Reports: 
[The following reports were submitted by email for inclusion in the minutes.]

Academic Affairs Committee: Senator Nikolaou
The Academic Affairs Committee met this evening. We discussed revisions to Policy 4.1.22 Recording in Instructional Settings. We voted to approve Policy 3.3.12A, Faculty Responsibilities to Students, and will submit it to the Executive Committee for their consideration. We also continued our discussion on the new Code of Student Conduct.
Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Senator Meyer
We reviewed and discussed the draft of our AIF report to the Senate. The finalized AIF report draft will be sent to the Executive Committee tomorrow and we will return the SAR after we finish a couple minor edits. We voted unanimously to approve our report pending those minor edits. We are, perhaps, close on 6.1.37 and have been in contact with the VP-Advancement. Once the VPUA gives the green light, AABC can move forward though this may be an item that AABC moves through Senate at the beginning of next year’s session due to the timing. Once we finish our Presidential commentary report we will revisit discussions and investigations of Fall Break. Despite the time we spent working on 3.2.15 & 3.3.6 this year, those are tabled indefinitely and we will not be able to finish that work this year. We may need to send back the SARs for these policies? We went into executive session for the last half of our meeting.

Faculty Affairs Committee: Senator Blum
Faculty affairs reviewed policy 4.1.9 Disestablishment of Academic Units and will send it to Exec. 

Planning and Finance Committee: Senator Paolucci
Planning and Finance discussed 9.2 and welcomed Senator Beasley for the discussion, then we moved on to discussion of policy 1.7. 

Rules Committee: Senator Valentin
The Rules committee met today and reviewed and approved revisions to the College of Education Bylaws and will be forwarding those to Exec.

University Policy Committee: Senator Stewart
The UPC did meet tonight (3/25/26).  We discussed our plans in relation to 1.17/1.17A, deciding to not work on this further this semester and pass the policy revisions to the next version of the UPC.  Then, we continued working on 3.2.4 Salary Adjustments before adjourning.

Communications

Adjournment
Motion by Senator Barrowclough. 
Second by Senator Beasley. 
Unanimous approval.
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